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White Out: Part One

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired:
Writer:

Director:

Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Friday December 2, 2022

Emilia di Girolamo

Sam Donovan

Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy
Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Frédéric-Antoine Guimond (Olivier
Brulé€), Pierre Simpson (Gabri Dubeau), Tamara Brown (Myrna Lan-
ders), Marie-France Lambert (Reine-Marie), Frank Schorpion (Pierre
Arnot), Georgina Lightning (Arisawe Two-Rivers), Crystle Lightning
(Missy Two-Rivers), Isabel Deroy-Olson (Kara Two-Rivers), Anna
Lambe (Blue Two-Rivers), Rylie Abakan Simon (Pearl), Jonel Beauvais
(Indigenous Woman at Protest), Marcel Jeannin (Superintendent Fran-
coeur), Lucy Van Oldenbarneveld (Reporter), Robert Moloney (Richard
Lyon), Simone-Elise Girard (CC de Poitiers), Iannicko N’'Doua-Légaré
(Saul Petrov), Jill Frappier (Emilie Longpré), Kathleen Fee (Kaye
Thompson), Patricia Summersett (Angela Blake), Max Laferriere (Mike
Blake), Joe Cobden (Hayden Smith), Daniel Murphy (Marc Fortier),
Ali Hand (Sophie), Jérémie Earp (SQ Police Officer), Roberta Battaglia
(Crie)

Gamache ignores his superior’s orders and investigates the disappear-
ance of Blue Two-Rivers. As punishment, he’s dispatch to the remote
village of Three Pines to solve the murder of a wealthy socialite with no
shortage of suspects.

The episode starts with a whole bunch
of protestors demanding justice for their
loved ones going missing. They claim the
SQ are doing nothing to help, and show
up in their numbers at the police sta-
tion. As things begin escalating, Inspector
Armand Gamache heads outside to calm
things down.

Blue Two-Rivers is one of the girls and
she’s been missing for over a year (13
months and 11 days to be precise). No
one has taken the case on and apparently
this originated when she stepped into a
car. Peacekeepers asked SQ for help 9
months ago and since then they've heard
nothing. Blue was only 18 as well and
there’s no way she’d just up and leave,

at least according to her mother, Missy. After driving the family home, Gamache promises to try
and find the young girl.

That night, during a Christmas party, Gamache speaks to Pierre Arnot, a colleague who
happens to be running the division overseeing the Two-Rivers case. They couldn’t find anything
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out the ordinary and believe that Blue and her boyfriend Tommy took a ride out in a truck and
left town. Since then, they haven’t been seen again. Pierre warns that Gamache is going to obsess
over this case and it’s going to break his heart, knowing what how obsessive the inspector can
get.

Although it looks beautiful on the surface, beneath the surface of Quebec village Three Pines,
there’s a lot of secrets and grudges. This much is especially true during a choir performance at
a church, as numerous dirty looks are thrown at CC, a woman who’s having an affair on her
husband Richard. She regrets having her daughter Crie and calls out Richard (in French) as a
bad husband.

CC is not well liked in the community, with some clearly likening her to a modern day Cruella
De Vil (and not the Disneyfied "This puppy murderer is just misunderstood" way).

CC is having an affair with her close colleague and photographer Saul Petrov. She also shuts
down Clara Morrow, a promising painter who wants to show Petrov her portfolio but CC rudely
blows her off completely.

The community has a big curling match going on, explaining why they’'re all gathered together,
but tellingly CC sits separately to everyone else. She starts to feel hot, taking off her gloves
and attempts to stand up. As she does, CC touches the arms of her metal chair and ends up
electrocuted.

Inspector Gamache is called to the scene, along with several other investigators. Apparently no
one saw anything awry, but whoever did this must have been meticulous and bold. To electrocute
someone in front of the whole village, and to do so in this manner means they must be intelligent.

Investigating the crime scene, Gamache deduces that whoever the killer is used jumper cables
with a generator to electrocute CC intentionally. But why do this so publicly and elaborately in
front of everyone?

CC’s next of kin is her husband Richard Lyon and his daughter, Crie. Gamache speaks to
Richard in confidence, who tentatively admits that she and Saul spent a lot of time together. He’s
a portrait photographer and was also helping with her new book.

That night, Inspector Gamache and his team head to the local bistro, where the entire village
are together joyously laughing and eating on one big table. Gamache notices a beautiful painting
up on the wall and learns that Clara painted it. After a brief chat with her, and Clara’s partner
(Peter) who doesn’t seem best pleased that Clara is still an undiscovered talent, it's down to brass
tacks — dinner.

Gamache’s team includes the local rookie, Yvette Nichol, second-in-command Jean-Guy and
Isabelle. Be Calm (the name of CC’s book) also happens to be the name of the community center
up in town. While setting up their base of operations there, Yvette gets working on the list of
credit card transactions and all those hotel rooms CC ended up paying for.

As for Isabelle, she looks into how all of this is connected. Washer fluid was found under CC’s
seat at the Curling match, and she was wearing metal clawed boots too, essentially turning her
seat into an electric chair. An electric chair execution that the whole village witnessed.

In the morning, Gamache speaks to Saul Petrov, who has a rather flaky story and it doesn’t
help that his hand shakes while putting his USB stick in the drive. Gamache warns him not to
leave Three Pines for the time being.

Gamache and Jean-Guy do the preliminary reports for various different residents in town,
including the eccentric writer Ruth Zardo who really doesn’t seem all that bothered about CC’s
death. And in fact, Gamache shows up and speaks to all the residents at their book club, pointing
out their grievances with the deceased and how CC ruffled their feathers (no pun intended, given
Ruth is cradling a duck).

That night, Pierre rings with an update on the Blue Two-Rivers case. Tracing the registration
plates and social media feeds, they find a picture of Blue and Tommy together under the Red
Rook hashtag. It was posted two weeks ago. Isabelle joins Gamache as they head to the Blue
Rivers residence to let them know the good news. Only... something isn’t right.

Despite the picture being posted a few weeks back, it would appear that Blue’s jacket is
actually still hanging in the closet.In the morning, Gamache heads back to the Community
Center, where he works out just how many suspects there actually are. It’s the whole village. So
how on earth are they going to whittle down the list? An what if it was really all of them together
that’s responsible?
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White Out: Part Two

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Friday December 02, 2022

Emilia di Girolamo

Sam Donovan

Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy
Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Frédéric-Antoine Guimond (Olivier
Brulé€), Pierre Simpson (Gabri Dubeau), Tamara Brown (Myrna Lan-
ders), Marie-France Lambert (Reine-Marie), Frank Schorpion (Pierre
Arnot), Georgina Lightning (Arisawe Two-Rivers), Crystle Lightning
(Missy Two-Rivers), Isabel Deroy-Olson (Kara Two-Rivers), Anna
Lambe (Blue Two-Rivers), Rylie Abakan Simon (Pearl), Ginette Beau-
mont (Elderly Homeless Woman — Eleanor), Simone-Elise Girard
(CC de Poitiers), Daniel Murphy (Marc Fortier), Ali Hand (Sophie),
Joe Cobden (Hayden Smith), Max Laferriere (Mike Blake), Iannicko
N’Doua-Légaré (Saul Petrov), Patricia Summersett (Angela Blake), Jill
Frappier (Emilie Longpré), Kathleen Fee (Kaye Thompson), Roberta
Battaglia (Crie), Robert Moloney (Richard Lyon), Marie-Josée Bélanger
(Gamache’s Mother), Gryffin Hanvelt (Young Gamache), Michael Dou-
glas Cake (Smoking Janitor), Berkley Silverman (Collette Longpre)
Gamache looks into the victim’s enigmatic past and learns one of the
villagers withheld information. Gamache’s delight at a breakthrough
in the Blue Two-Rivers case is short-lived when the family has doubts,
leading to a desperate act.

The episode begins with CC taking a pil-
low and murdering an old lady in her
bed. A creak from the doorway seems
to hint that someone ended up watching
this take place.

Fast forward to the present, and two
days have passed since CC’s murder.
With all the villagers together, Gamache
organizes everyone to sit exactly where
they did during the Curling match.
Gamache tries to work out how the
electrics play into this, and it could well
be Richard Lyons. He has a number of
patents for electrical inventions. Given
he knows how electric circuits work, he
could have devised this electric chair
himself.

While Nichols run a background check on Lyon’s finances, Gamache ends up speaking to Bea
about CC’s book, learning that some of the words are from the Bible but a couple of words have
been changed. Furthermore, CC seems to have built a whole philosophy around a Christmas
ornament, potentially the same one that we saw Crie smash last episode.
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According to the coroner’s report, CC’s blood had 20 times the normal dose of niacin. A high
enough dose can actually promote hot flushes, explaining why she took off her gloves. This
would denote that her drink was spike at the Curling match. Even more bizarre though, there’s
no birth certificate in the name of Cecilia de Poitiers. It's almost as if CC doesn’t exist. If that
wasn't enough, CC also lied about her parents’ names too.

Jean-Guy comes bursting in though with Saul, who was on the verge of destroying crucial
evidence before being tackled to the ground. Once together, Gamache and his team find dozens
of photos of Saul and CC together, along with numerous pictures from the Curling match. There’s
also one of Richard Lyon getting CC her coffee.

CC’s real mother apparently made her life hell, but Saul points out he and CC had just broken
up, right on the edge of this Curling match. After the interview, Gamache rules out Saul as the
killer. He’s too in love with her and doesn’t really have a motive. Richard though, most certainly
does. He was in financial dire straits and leaking money. CC was insured for close to a million
so with her now dead, it actually sorts their family finances out completely — and puts Richard
Lyon in the spotlight.

Gamache immediately goes on the offensive and confronts Richard Lyon with Jean-Guy. He
points out that CC became a bully who liked causing pain and he’s glad she’s gone... but he
didn’t kill her. He’s adamant that murder wasn’t on the cards and given he didn’t even know
what CC’s real name was either, it seems to add up.

As we soon find out, CC’s real name was Cecilia Longpre, which seems to hint that her
mother’s name is Emilie Longpre. The same Emilie Longpre we caught glimpses of last episode.

When Gamache dives deeper into this, it turns out the lady is actually CC’s aunt. CC’s mother
was called Eleanor. El was always troubled and it deepened her depression, having a breakdown
and even striking CC as a child. El died in a shelter in Montreal about a year back. Apparently
they couldn’t find a cause of death, but it seems this is the scene we saw at the start of the
episode.

Gamache is clever and figures out the meaning of this "Be Calm" statement that’s been re-
peated throughout the past couple of episodes. It's actually a combination of four names. Bea,
Kaye, El and Em. They adapted a psalm, meaning that they weren't strangers after all. They
must have been super close to come up with all of that. "Don’t leave the villgae will you, Bea."
The Inspector finishes.

In the morning, Gamache shows up at Emilie’s place where she has video footage of her
confessing to the crime and doing so to save Crie from CC as she’s a monster. While Jean-Guy
puts the evidence in lock-up, Gamache hurries over to try and find Em. Only, she’s out in the
freezing cold, almost dying of hypothermia.

As a result of this, Gamache doubts Emilie’s story, and even more so when he realizes that
whoever did this must have known about the metal claws on the boots. This denotes someone
super close to CC, which rules out Emilie. It could well be that Emilie is covering for the real
killer who may have confessed everything to her.

Gamache shows up at Richard Lyon’s place and speaks to Crie. He susses out that she’s
the one responsible given she learned what she knew from Richard. It also turns out that Crie
was the one who witnessed CC killing her mother in the past, and conspired with her to cover
everything up. Police take her away and arrest the girl.

As for this Blue situation, apparently a small time drug dealer claims to have sold meth to
Tommy two days ago. And Blue was with him. Blue’s mother Missy is convinced that the police
haven’'t done enough to help her daughter. She waits outside the police station all night, but
when Gamache shows up, she’s standing on the edge of the roof. He hurries up to try and stop
her but it’s too late. She jumps. Gamache is shocked and helpless.
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The Cruellest Month: Part One

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

( \
Originally aired: Friday December 09, 2022
Writer: Jamie Crichton
Director: Tracey Deer
Show Stars: Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy

Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Guest Stars: Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Frédéric-Antoine Guimond (Olivier
Brul€), Pierre Simpson (Gabri Dubeau), Tamara Brown (Myrna Lan-
ders), Marie-France Lambert (Reine-Marie), Frank Schorpion (Pierre
Arnot), Georgina Lightning (Arisawe Two-Rivers), Crystle Lightning
(Missy Two-Rivers), Isabel Deroy-Olson (Kara Two-Rivers), Rylie
Abakan Simon (Pearl), Joe Cobden (Hayden Smith), Daniel Murphy
(Marc Fortier), Jessica Lee (Drunk Kid #1), Madelyn Keys (Drunk Kid
#2), Liam Condo (Drunk Kid #3), Emmet Graham (Drunk Kid #4),
Marcel Jeannin (Superintendent Francoeur), Gryffin Hanvelt (Young
Gamache), Ali Hand (Sophie), Thierry Yatma-Beye (Piano Student), Si-
mone Dumoulin (Sophie’s Piano Double)

Summary: Gamache returns to Three Pines to investigate the disappearance of
the popular resident Marc Fortier but it soon becomes a murder case
that leads Gamache and his team into the heart of the village’s dark
past at St Anthony’s. Meanwhile, Lacoste discovers a key piece of
evidence relating to Blue’s disappearance has been faked, and with
Gamache’s encouragement secretly reopens the case.

The episode starts with a little bit of late-
night arson. The locals head to CC’s old
home to set the place on fire. They start
to pour gasoline into the bushes and en-
ter the building. They soon hear voices
and find teens partying in the abandoned
home. The locals scare off the teens, and
they decide to check all the rooms before
starting the fire properly. Marc Fortier
heads into the basement, where a hooded
figure kicks him down the stairs. Another
day at Three Pines, another death.

Armand and his faithful colleagues are
quick on the scene. There are no signs of
a struggle and no unique pieces of evi-
dence to over-analyze. But Armand finds
the gang a clue almost immediately. He
spots fingerprints in the dust and swiftly uncovers a hidden door that leads to a hidden room.
CC’s home was an old school for indigenous students, and this particular room was used to lock
in and torture students. Armand finds Marc’s bloodied corpse in another compartment within
this room. The victim’s head was bashed in with a rock, which is placed beside the body. As they
leave, they sniff the gasoline in the bushes, Armand has two crimes to solve now, both occurring
within minutes of each other.
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Marc had no relatives, so they go to question his closest friend, Hayden, and his daughter
Sophie. Marc and Hayden were friends since college and both helped each other out in their time
of need. Both lost their wives and at the time of Marc’s death, he was living with Hayden and
Sophie. Hayden believes Marc had no enemies and was a well-liked individual. The authorities
find alcohol in Sophie’s room and a photo album that reveals a link between Marc and the old
school — Marc’s father was the caretaker there.

Isabelle investigates Blue’s case further and discovers a piece of key information that all the
other officers missed. Blue was photographed at a party, yet this was clearly photo-shopped. She
was never at that event, but somebody wanted it to look like she was. Isabelle goes to tell the
family the news. She apologizes for their loss, Missy committed suicide at the end of the previous
episode. Isabelle is suspicious of Kevin and inspects his house next.

All the locals are interviewed once again. They deny any involvement in the murder or the
attempted arson. It is revealed that CC’s house was going to be bought and turned into a hotel,
which could be seen as competition for the Bistro owners, thus a possible motive for burning the
place down. The owners talk of the building being haunted and a ghostly caretaker roaming the
halls. Armand realizes that Marc’s father was the caretaker.

Jean-Guy and Armand are invited to dinner at the Morrow’s, but the invitation isn’t just a
harmless gesture, they have ulterior motives, and they want info on Marc’s death. Ruth blurts
out the question as soon as Armand has sat in his chair. They want to know how he died.
Armand tries to change the topic of the conversation and asks for details on Marc’s life. He
was an amateur painter and a psychotherapist. The locals bring up the haunting again and an
argument erupts. Bea is extremely defensive about the predicament and states that grown men
tortured children in that place, it is no laughing matter. Is Bea now a possible suspect?

Further digging reveals that the caretaker was the main abuser at the school and his son,
Marc, wanted to make amends for all that suffering. He proposed a memorial for the survivors
and Bea opposed it. Bea’s tattoo matches the symbols found in the torture chamber. Armand
questions her and she confesses, she was locked in that room for two days straight as a child.
There is a lot of bad energy and many disturbing memories intertwined with that place. She
hated Marc for two main reasons, firstly his connection to the torture and secondly his misguided
publicity stunt.

Jean-Guy thinks Sophie or the Morrow family are more likely suspects than Bea. Then Yvette
finds hidden keys that belonged to Marc and a goose key ring connected to the chain. They pay
Ruth a visit. She was renting out her cabin to Marc so that he could do his paintings in private.
They rush over to the cabin, in the dead of night. Jean-Guy notices that the place has been
inhabited lately, then they hear a noise. A chase ensues and they manage to force the intruder
into a dead end, the mysterious figure is revealed to be Peter Morrow — our latest suspect.
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The Cruellest Month: Part Two

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired:
Writer:

Director:

Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Friday December 09, 2022

Jamie Crichton

Tracey Deer

Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy
Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Frédéric-Antoine Guimond (Olivier
Brul€), Pierre Simpson (Gabri Dubeau), Tamara Brown (Myrna Lan-
ders), Georgina Lightning (Arisawe Two-Rivers), Isabel Deroy-Olson
(Kara Two-Rivers), Rylie Abakan Simon (Pearl), Anna Lambe (Blue
Two-Rivers), Tehahsitaieronni Deer (Matthew / Niyaaniipuu), Drey-
den David (Mohawk Boy #1), Rawennawanen Keese Olivier Swamp
(Mohawk Boy #2), Violet Sutherland (Young Bea), Arthur Holden (The
Caretaker), Marie-Josée Bélanger (Gamache’s Mother), Gryffin Hanvelt
(Young Gamache), Deena Aziz (Kathleen Barker), Jessica Lee (Drunk
Kid #1), Madelyn Keys (Drunk Kid #2), Liam Condo (Drunk Kid #3),
Emmet Graham (Drunk Kid #4), Ali Hand (Sophie), Katsitsionni Fox
(Mohawk Singer #1), Theresa Fox (Mohawk Singer #2), Joe Cobden
(Hayden Smith), Joshua Odjick (Tommy Kis), Bryan Morneau (SQ Of-
ficer), Simone Dumoulin (Sophie’s Piano Double)

The villagers confront the truth of their past and exorcise their collec-
tive demons as Gamache makes a breakthrough in the murder case
and realises Marc’s killer had a very personal motive. Meanwhile, La-
coste makes a discovery relating to Blue’s disappearance that seems
to identify a key suspect.

9

The old school, St. Anthony’s, is intri-
cately linked to the history of Three Pines,
a place where indigenous students were
tortured and kept prisoners for years. The
episode opens with a flashback, showing
the horrors of this awful place. A young
Bea watches as her brother and two other
young students leave for brighter futures,
while the evil caretaker apprehends poor
Bea. In the previous chapter, we found
out who the caretaker was and how Bea
was linked to it all but is she just a dis-
traction, a red herring if you will?
Armand thinks it’s all connected, the
murders and the school. He interrogates
Peter Morrow, who they arrested in the
previous (literal) cliffhanger. The police

have uncovered his deleted phone conversations with Marc, it seems they had an intense re-
lationship that verged on a romance. Peter says they didn’t have an affair though, Marc was just
his therapist. He traded painting lessons for therapy sessions. Peter went to the cabin to find
Marc’s laptop to delete the therapy notes. Another local with secrets they want to keep hidden.
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Isabelle manically checks Tommy and Kevin’s house again and this time she finds some
evidence. There are huge chunks missing from the rug and underneath, the floorboards appear
to have been tampered with. Later, forensics uncover bleached floorboards and Blue’s blood.
The missing person case continues to build some momentum adjacent to this week’s murder
mystery. Meanwhile, Isabelle receives a visit from Youth Protection. A complaint has been made
about Isabelle’s parenting and they must follow it up appropriately.

Yvette looks into the teenager’s cell phone that they found at the murder site. She discovers
incriminating video footage. Firstly, it shows Sophie at the building, drunk and joining in with
the vandalism. Secondly, it shows Bea in attendance on the night of Marc’s death, something
she previously lied about. Armand confronts her about this, but Bea is antagonistic as always.

Jean-Guy researches the school and finds out about the story from the opening scene, Bea’s
brother ran away from home but drowned. He also points out an intriguing name on the school’s
register — Mary Two-Rivers, she is now known as Arisawe. She was a pupil at St. Anthony’s —
our first major link between the two stories. Jean-Guy and Isabelle stake out the building that
night and hear strange noises inside. On investigating these spooky sounds, they find a raccoon
in the basement, this leads to the uncovering of a secret passageway that takes them to another
room in the house. They assume the killer used this hidden crawlspace to escape unseen. In the
tunnel, Isabelle finds a mobile phone.

Armand and Isabelle visit the Two-River’s household, to ask about the school’s history. Kara
admits to phoning the child helpline, she was the one who set up Isabelle out of anger and for
some of her own revenge. Then Arisawe talks about the night her brother escaped. She believes
the caretaker killed him and the other boys. Armand takes a shovel and gets to digging. He soon
finds human bones in the torture chamber, she was right all along.

Bea is informed of this bittersweet finding. She can now put her brother to rest. Bea blames
herself for his death, she was the one that got caught. All the signs point towards Bea being the
killer, but she denies killing Marc again. Bea directs Armand’s attention back to Hayden, who
was arguing on the day of Marc’s death. This inter-cuts with Hayden and Sophie arguing in the
present. Hayden knew about Sophie’s teenage rebellion and admits that he lied to the police for
her. Sophie just wants her space and storms off.

Armand’s team start to deliver on the more pressing evidence. Jean-Guy says that Marc wasn’t
broke, but he was deceiving Hayden. Marc bought a plane ticket to New York in Sophie’s name.
And then Yvette finds the voice notes between Marc and Sophie. He was trying to help her escape
her father’s controlling stranglehold. They race to Hayden’s house, but there’s no one home.

Hayden drives Sophie to an unknown destination. The police tail him and he refuses to pull
over. The only thing that stops him is a ridiculous altercation with a bear. Hayden and Sophie’s
argument is cut short when he suddenly brakes in front of this deadly animal. The police coax
Sophie and Hayden out of the car and Hayden is arrested. He confesses immediately, stating
that he was only protecting his daughter, it was just an accident. But Armand isn’t being fooled.
Hayden is the Killer. In the final moments of the episode, Armand is informed that there is an
incident at the school, and someone has finally burnt the place down. Bea looks on with a smirk
on her face. Did the locals finally get their way?
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The Murder Stone: Part One

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Friday December 16, 2022

Catherine Tregenna

Daniel Grou

Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy
Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Marie-France Lambert (Reine-Marie),
Frank Schorpion (Pierre Arnot), Laurence Leboeuf (Julia Morrow),
Alexandre Ricard (Elliot), Elizabeth Neale (Mariana Morrow), Rose-
mary Dunsmore (Irene Morrow), Myléne Dinh-Robic (Sandra Mor-
row), Brett Donahue (Thomas Morrow), Bobby Daniels (Mr. Maynard),
Vincent Leclerc (Maurice Tradeau), Yanna McIntosh (Estelle), Acacia
Hanvelt (Bean), Jack Molloy Legault (Young Thomas Morrow), Stu-
art Hughes (Charles Morrow), Harriette Legault (Young Julia Mor-
row), Viggo Hanvelt (Young Peter Morrow), Willow Astbury (Young Mar-
iana Morrow), Manny Benda (Young Maurice), Elysia Bryan-Barnes
(Reporter), lehwatsirahni:Ra’ts Gilbert (Mathilde Lacost), Shareena
Jebb (Lili Lacoste), Colton Clause (Kevin Kis), Gryffin Hanvelt (Young
Gamache), Marie-Josée Bélanger (Gamache’s Mother)

The Gamache’s anniversary celebrations at the exclusive Manoir Belle-
foret hotel are cut short by the discovery of a body. Gamache pulls in
his team and together they investigate the case, which focuses on the
hotel’s owners — the dysfunctional Morrow family — who are driven
by bitterness and jealousy. Meanwhile, Lacoste receives a surprise call
which blows the Blue Two-Rivers case wide open.

The Morrow family has gathered at the
family Chateau, which is now a lucra-
tive hotel business, to hear the last will
and testament of Charles Morrow, the
ruthless businessman and father. His
children, Thomas, Peter, and Mariana
are each left twenty thousand and his
wife Irene gets the estate. But it is the
estranged daughter Julia that gets the
Chateau. This announcement is met with
anger from the rest of the family. They are
then shown the father’s final gift, an un-
sightly statue of the man himself.

That night they gather once more for
a meal to discuss their father, and mar-
ried couple Peter and Clara bump into Ar-
mand and his wife Reine-Marie. They are

staying at the Chateau for their anniversary — what a coincidence. Armand watches the Morrow
family meal from afar. It’s a heated debate as they argue. Julia believes she was owed the hotel
as a reward for something horrible her father did to her in her youth. She argues that no one
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stood up for her at the time, but she has now found her son and is going to give him the hotel
instead.

A violent storm follows that aggressive meal and a drunk Julia wanders the rooftop in the
torrential downpour. She goes to her father’s statue, where she releases more of her pent-up
anger. While Julia goes wild, Armand is having a rather painful dream. The next morning, he
walks the grounds with his wife but is swiftly summoned. There’s been a terrible accident. Julia
is found crushed underneath the statue.

Jean-Guy and Isabelle are quickly requested and investigate the crime scene with Armand.
The Chief thinks this is no accident, Julia was bludgeoned to death before the statue was pushed
onto her. This was staged to look like an accident, but it is very much a homicide. Armand orders
all guests to be contained within the grounds for questioning. He notices that the cement hasn’t
hardened on the statue’s feet and there are strange carvings all over the monument. There’s even
excrement smeared on the statue too.

Armand informs the Morrow family and the hotel staff of Julia’s passing. They all deny seeing
Julia after the meal. As usual, the gang starts to gather evidence and question all the suspects.
Charles’ wife Irene explains how Julia became pregnant at fifteen and Charles ordered her to put
the baby up for adoption. Irene wasn’t included in the discussion and is saddened to this day by
the incident. Julia soon left the family, which created a rift between all the siblings.

Peter, who has been a suspect of Armand’s before, is seen on the CCTV footage wandering
the grounds during the storm. Peter admits to looking for Julia, even though he lied about this
earlier to Armand. Julia and Peter had argued the night before, but he promises he didn’t kill his
sister — well, that’s that then. Armand shows Peter the carvings. Peter notices a carving of a dog
that looks like a drawing he did as a child. Peter explains how Charles would set the children
puzzles to solve, in an attempt to test and humiliate them. He thinks these carvings are Charles’
final puzzle. Each sibling represents a different carving.

Isabelle and Yvette check Julia’s room, where they find two wine glasses — suspicious! Yvette
is flippant about Julia’s death and asks what she had done for a job. Isabelle informs her that
she was a tech entrepreneur. Isabelle is tired of Yvette’s unprofessional antics, and I am growing
ever more irritated by this character too. She asks Yvette to go fetch some drinks, just to be away
from her. Then Isabelle discovers a note written to Julia, it says: "Meet me by the statue, we need
to talk".

There’s another break in the Blue Two-Rivers disappearance case. Suspect Kevin Kis sees his
details on the news and panics, calling Isabelle. He asks to meet with her alone to prove his
innocence and explain what really happened.

Armand interrogates Clara, who reveals her husband’s history with Julia. When she fell preg-
nant, Julia confided in Peter and told him she was going to elope with her boyfriend. He went
and told his father, leaving the baby scan photo on his desk. Julia never forgave him for this
betrayal and Peter never forgave himself either. Once again, Peter is a suspect in a Three Pines
murder case.

12
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The Murder Stone: Part Two

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Writer:
Director:
Show Stars:

Guest Stars:

Summary:

Originally aired:

Friday December 16, 2022

Catherine Tregenna

Daniel Grou

Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy
Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Marie-France Lambert (Reine-Marie),
Marcel Jeannin (Superintendent Francoeur), Willow Astbury (Young
Mariana Morrow), Stuart Hughes (Charles Morrow), Viggo Hanvelt
(Young Peter Morrow), Harriette Legault (Young Julia Morrow), Jack
Molloy Legault (Young Thomas Morrow), Manny Benda (Young Mau-
rice), Brett Donahue (Thomas Morrow), Crystle Lightning (Missy Two-
Rivers), Myléne Dinh-Robic (Sandra Morrow), Rosemary Dunsmore
(Irene Morrow), Jean Bernard (SQ Officer), Colton Clause (Kevin Kis),
Joshua Odjick (Tommy Kis), Anna Lambe (Blue Two-Rivers), Elizabeth
Neale (Mariana Morrow), Acacia Hanvelt (Bean), Kathryn Kirkpatrick
(Gas Station Owner), Vincent Leclerc (Maurice Tradeau), Alexandre
Ricard (Elliot), Laurence Leboeuf (Julia Morrow), Katherine Turnbull
(SQ Officer at Cell)

Gamache and his team get to the heart of the case, excavating
decades-old resentments and deeply buried secrets in the Morrow fam-
ily as they do so, and make the key discovery that enables them to
identify the killer. Meanwhile, Lacoste’s elation at making a break-
through in the Two-Rivers case proves short-lived and a tragedy leaves
her shell-shocked.

Picking up from where we left off, Armand
talks Thomas out of a painful death. As
he persuades Thomas to lower the rifle,
the eldest of Charles’ siblings apologizes
to his father, admitting that he didn’t kill
the stag all those years ago. He seems to
have reverted back to a child and throws
a tantrum inside the hotel. Armand is
fully aware that Thomas lied about his al-
ibi, which makes him the main suspect.
Even his wife, Sandra, is suspicious of
her own partner. To prove his innocence,
the police take Thomas’ phone, he states
that he was calling his creditors when Ju-
lia was Killed.

Isabelle meets with Kevin Kis. The
paranoid fugitive points a gun at the cop,

but she manages to calm him down. He tells her that he, Blue, and Tommy were pulled over by
the police. Kevin knew he’d be locked away, so he ran. In the nearby forest, he heard gunshots,
and on returning, they were all gone. Kevin believes that Blue and Tommy’s disappearance is
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actually a police cover-up for murder. This puts Kevin in a tricky position, and he struggles to
trust anyone on the force. Isabelle asks to speak with Armand, but Kevin is spooked and runs.
Even Isabelle is paranoid after this twist, anxiously researching the incident at work.

Thomas and Sandra argue in soap opera-styled, melodramatic fashion. She thought he was
having an affair, but he’s just about to declare bankruptcy instead. Phone records prove that
Thomas was telling the truth and the odd couple seems happy once again. Peter walks in on
Thomas’ celebrations, angered by his brother’s selfish attitude. These two siblings then argue.
Peter steals his cuff-links and the two fight out on the lawn. It's another odd sequence that
is supposed to be played for comedy (I think), whilst highlighting the sibling rivalry and their
immaturity.

Armand reassesses the carvings, realizing that there are four children, but five carvings. They
discover that Charles kept altering his will and at one time considered a fifth inheritor, but this
was eventually dropped. To Armand this is a fresh lead, there is a fifth member in this tale, who
could possibly be the murderer. Discussing the fifth inheritor, Sandra reveals that Charles was
having multiple affairs, it could be anyone. Then Peter and Thomas make amends.

Jean-Guy suspects hotel worker Elliot and rushes to his on-site bedroom. He breaks in and
finds plenty of incriminating evidence. There’s a piece of paper that proves Elliot was forging
Thomas’ handwriting, to later frame him with that letter. Elliot had another identity, and then
the murder weapon itself, a bloodied shovel, is found hidden in his wardrobe. Maurice discovers
that Elliot has stolen money as well. He’s clearly on the run. The police panic, but Yvette is to
the rescue, arresting the man as he flees. Elliot confesses to being on the run as a fugitive but
believes he’s been framed for the murder.

As usual, Armand cracks the case. He continually refers back to a family photo that featured
the killing of the stag. He ponders who took the photo and goes to interrogate Maurice, the hotel
manager. Maurice bolts and tries to escape, grabbing a knife from the kitchen. All the exits are
blocked by the police though, so he takes Bean (Charles’ granddaughter) hostage instead, with a
knife to her throat. This gets everyone’s attention and the whole cast surround the killer, unable
to help.

Maurice reveals that Charles was his father, he was in fact the eldest son. Charles had an
affair with Maurice’s mother and broke her heart. He chose the Morrow family over her and
Maurice. Charles promised to give Maurice the hotel when he died but then went back on his
promise. He worked for the man his entire life and was left with nothing in the will. Armand
realizes that it was Maurice who shot the stag, not Thomas or Julia.

14
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The Hangman: Part One

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

( N\
Originally aired: Friday December 23, 2022
Writer: Emilia di Girolamo
Director: Sam Donovan
Show Stars: Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy

Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Guest Stars: Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Frédéric-Antoine Guimond (Olivier
Brulé€), Pierre Simpson (Gabri Dubeau), Tamara Brown (Myrna Lan-
ders), Marie-France Lambert (Reine-Marie), Frank Schorpion (Pierre
Arnot), Georgina Lightning (Arisawe Two-Rivers), Crystle Lightning
(Missy Two-Rivers), Isabel Deroy-Olson (Kara Two-Rivers), Anna
Lambe (Blue Two-Rivers), Rylie Abakan Simon (Pearl), Michael Hearn
(Arthur Ellis), Max Laferriere (Mike Blake), Patricia Summersett (An-
gela Blake), Gryffin Hanvelt (Young Gamache), Marie-Josée Bélanger
(Gamache’s Mother), Simon Pelletier (SQ Scene Guard), Hazgary Colin
(SQ Officer Search Team #2), Juliette Louie (SQ Officer Search Team
#1), Colton Clause (Kevin Kis), Leisa Reid (Female SIJ Agent), Konwa-
herawi Cross (Young Indigenous Girl), Yue Qi (Dante)

Summary: When a man bent on vengeance is discovered in the woods near Three
Pines, seemingly the victim of a group lynching, Gamache finds himself
wondering whether all the villagers are capable of murder. Meanwhile,
Gamache’s investigation into Blue’s disappearance leads to a terrible
discovery that turns Gamache’s world upside down.

The episode starts with a man named
Ellis coming crashing into the Bistro in
Three Pines, telling them all that he
knows what they've done and that they're
n | ‘ 1 [ TE all "going to pay for this." Although he’s

§ mm taken out by force, those inside happen

D! !li = = to be our usual rabble of suspects we've

v X1 | seen across the season and they cast a
i.; .‘Nmn‘ N N concerned glance at one another.
o . Meanwhile, the search for Blue con-
‘ tinues, with the community scouring the
forest to try and find clues. Off the edge
of Pine Ridge, the group end up finding a
hanged man — Ellis as it turns out. Al-
though it initially looks like suicide, several sets of footprints seem to debunk that theory.

When Gamache shows up, he notices the man’s hands don’t look like that of a climber’s, and
he has white pine tree needles on him too. Bea confirms there’s only a handful of places those
pine needles can be found in the woods.

The general theory here is that a group worked together to hang Ellis. When Clara Morrow
shows up, she confirms the man was at the Bistro the night before and he "did some damage."
He had to be restrained and taken outside by force and was staying at the town’s B&B.

Gamache and the team arrive at the Bed and Breakfast, exchanging pleasantries with Ruth
(well, she tells him to fuck off which is basically her way of saying hello). The man paid cash and
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had no guests the whole visit. The team are able to check out his room too, where everything
seems to be in order. At least upon first inspection.

The bag he has only has enough for 3 days not a week, while there’s no phone or wallet either.
A letter on the bed reads like a suicide note but the handwriting is way too neat and it seems like
it has been staged.

Ellis’ anger appears to be aimed at no one in particular but Olivier — one of the men there
— shows and is tasked with pointing out exactly who was at the Bistro that night. The Chief
Inspector appears first and speaks to Gabri Dubeau, the waiter, who happens to have been
punched in the mouth. He doesn’t reveal much, but a conversation between Olivier and Gabri in
French says more, specifically how the pair ended up having a big fight that night.

Interwoven around this case is the situation involving Blue. Kevin is the prime suspect here,
despite being dead, while Gamache does some research into the police involved with the Blue
case. It would seem that there’s a trigger-happy officer that could be at the heart of this.

The next day, Gamache and Isabelle end up finding two bodies buried in the woods. Blue and
Tommy. Not only that, but Gamache also finds more bullets at the scene of the crime. They're
police-issue too.

Blue appears to have been running away from cops, and whoever this officer is, shot her and
also shot Tommy. It's a heartbreaking revelation, especially for the family, and something that
doesn’t go down well.

Meanwhile, the group learn that Ellis had a rental car and his suicide note is actually his
handwriting too. But how did he write under so much duress? One of the more crucial clues
here comes from the residents themselves, with Clara and Myrna rushing up to the Inspector in
town with big news. The Book Club are actually reading The Handman the next month.

Ellis is just a pseudonym, it would seem, as his family have a long history of being on the
tougher end of the law. More specifically, Ellis happened to be Canada’s most prolific executioner.
He had over 600 people hanged. Their family had been hanging people for over 300 years. It
seems this Ellis character is very much along the same lines, and could have been using this
name intentionally to try and get revenge ("'casting vengeance") to those who have wronged him.

Soon, Isabelle learns the man was actually called James Hill. He packed up his whole apart-
ment, he had a family but seemed to have been living alone. The suicide note could be genuine
but he may have been killed before he actually did it himself.

Anyway, Gamache is en-route to the city, intent on closing out this Blue Two-Rivers case
once and for all. With ballistic records done under the table, to avoid suspicion, the markings are
traced back to two different guns. Their names and badge numbers are in the report and neither
gun was reported as lost. Daniel Chowski is the first name. And the second? Pierre Arnot. Oh no.
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The Hangman: Part Two

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

( N\
Originally aired: Friday December 23, 2022
Writer: Emilia di Girolamo
Director: Sam Donovan
Show Stars: Alfred Molina (Inspector Gamache), Rossif Sutherland (Jean-Guy

Beauvoir), Elle-Maija Tailfeathers (Isabelle Lacoste), Tantoo Cardinal
(Bea Mayer), Clare Coulter (Ruth Zardo), Sarah Booth (Yvette Nichol),
Anna Tierney (Clara Morrow)

Guest Stars: Julian Bailey (Peter Morrow), Frédéric-Antoine Guimond (Olivier
Brulé€), Pierre Simpson (Gabri Dubeau), Tamara Brown (Myrna Lan-
ders), Marie-France Lambert (Reine-Marie), Frank Schorpion (Pierre
Arnot), Georgina Lightning (Arisawe Two-Rivers), Isabel Deroy-Olson
(Kara Two-Rivers), Anna Lambe (Blue Two-Rivers), Rylie Abakan Si-
mon (Pearl), Gryffin Hanvelt (Young Gamache), Marie-Josée Bélanger
(Gamache’s Mother), Nicolas Paquin (Gamache’s Father), Yanna McIn-
tosh (Estelle), Marcel Jeannin (Superintendent Francoeur), Patricia
Summersett (Angela Blake), Max Laferriere (Mike Blake), Chantal Des-
jardins (Newscaster), Elisabeth Etienne (SQ Officer #1), Sabrina Au-
clair (SQ Officer #2), Robert Montcalm (Chowski), Colton Clause (Kevin
Kis), Joshua Odjick (Tommy Kis)

Summary: Gamache and his team unearth a tragic story that provides the key to
the victim’s desire for vengeance, and by doing so leads the team to his
murderers. Meanwhile, it falls to Gamache to apprehend the individ-
ual responsible for Blue Two-Rivers’ disappearance, putting himself in
grave danger as he does so.

The episode starts with a look at
Gamache’s past. Specifically when his
parents were killed in a car crash.
Gamache survived, and it's something
that’s haunted him ever since. Still, we're
back in the present for now and Gamache
deliberates over how to handle the ballis-
tic report. Knowing that Pierre was the
one who shot Blue — and he happens
to be over playing cards with the family
that night no less — makes things suit-
ably awkward.
i~ With Kevin dead and the case turned
e to that of a homicide, Gamache brings up
the white pine needles and a parable that claims that appearances can be deceiving. As he stares
daggers through Pierre, his wife picks up on the signals and Gamache reveals the truth to her in
confidence.

Gamache shows up to see the Superintendent in the morning, informing him of Pierre Arnot’s
involvement in the case and what happened. The man agrees to hand it over to internal investi-
gations and get right on resolving the matter urgently.

Back in Three Pines, Gamache is determined to resolve this case as quickly as possible. A
returning Jean-Guy joins Isabelle and our protagonist as they deep dive into the history of the
residents, intending to find out what the connection to James Hill happens to be.
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It seems that James Hill came to Three Pines after a big accident that occurred on the road.
There’s no conviction for the driver though, while Hill worked to try and get justice for five years.
When he couldn’t, he moved to Ottawa, taking a job in the records office. He believes that one
of the kids is actually in Three Pines, explaining what Hill was doing there, wanting to cast
vengeance. Of course, this whole ordeal is too much for Gamache to take, given his own history
and past involving car crashes.

Jean-Guy deduces that Hill’s plan was to find and kill each of the four kids from that fateful
day at the crash. However, whoever these kids are they got to Hill first and hanged him to cover
their own backs.

After doing solid police work, Gamache orders Jean-Guy to head home and surprise Enid. The
thing is, he and Enid are actually breaking up. Speaking of surprises, Agent Nichols overhears
a couple of officers talking about how Pierre isn’t the one being arrested. It's Gamache. She’s
shocked and hurries out without being seen, intent on tipping off our inspector.

Meanwhile, an unknowing Gamache heads back to the Bistro again, where he speaks to
Olivier about the fight that occurred that night between James and Gabri. Now, a witness actually
puts Gabri running out of the forest around the time of the murder, which doesn’t look good. He
claims he went for a run, but Gamache brings up Gabri’s shaky alibi, including how he happened
to have Hill’s wallet in his pocket. According to Gabri, Hill intended to give it back when he left it
in the bistro but when Hill came in, kicking and screaming, it slipped his mind.

Gabri knows who the kids are in town and eventually reveals as much to Gamache. It's Angela
and Mike Blake. Gabri is in the clear, although he did find Hill's hanged body and ran away in
shock. As Angela and Mike pack their things and try to high-tail it out of town, their cover blown,
Gamache tasks Isabelle (and Jean-Guy who shows from the Bistro) with finding them while he
himself rushes off to settle this Pierre situation.

Angela and Mike try to escape Three Pines, with a car chase ensuing. However, Angela and
Mike lose control of their car and go tumbling off the bridge out of town, capsizing upside down
and falling to their doom. The thing is, Jean-Guy was driving but completely over the limit.
Isabelle is shocked and decides they should get their story in-check, notably that she was driving
and he was riding shotgun.

Gamache shows up at Chowski’s cabin but the place is a mess. It looks like some sort of fight
has broken out, while Daniel Chowski’s badge is still inside. That’s important to note because out
in the yard, Gamache watches as Pierre burns Kevin’s truck and concocts a story that Chowski
is completely to blame for all of this. Only, Chowski happens to be inside the burning truck.

The truth is, Pierre was running a scam but makes it out like it was all Chowski. They knew
Kevin’s truck was full of tobacco and pulled him over, threatening to take them in unless they
gave a cut of the profits. Blue filmed them, talking about sovereign rights, while Tommy jumped
in the way of Chowski, who shot him. Pierre panicked when Blue ran and ended up shooting her.

With the video on her phone, it would have ruined him. And finally, the piece de resistance
sees Pierre get his gun and shoot Gamache in cold blood. When Jean-Guy and Isabelle show up,
they find Gamache lying on his back and struggling to remain conscious. As for Pierre, he’s gone.
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Actor Appearances

Willow Astbury ... 2
0105 (Young Mariana Morrow); 0106 (Young Mari-
ana Morrow)

Sabrina Auclair ..........c.ooiiiiii i 1
0108 (SQ Officer #2)
Deena AzZiZ. ..o e 1

0104 (Kathleen Barker)

Marie-Josée Bélanger.............cooveiiiiiiiiineninn 5
0102 (Gamache’s Mother); 0104 (Gamache’s Mother);
0105 (Gamache’s Mother); 0107 (Gamache’s
Mother); 0108 (Gamache’s Mother)
Julian Bailey . ......ooiiuiiiiiii i 8
0101 (Peter Morrow); 0102 (Peter Morrow); 0103
(Peter Morrow); 0104 (Peter Morrow); 0105 (Pe-
ter Morrow); 0106 (Peter Morrow); 0107 (Peter
Morrow); 0108 (Peter Morrow)

Roberta Battaglia ..................oooooiiinn 2
0101 (Crie); 0102 (Crie)

Ginette Beaumont............coiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0102 (Elderly Homeless Woman — Eleanor)

Jonel Beauvais...........oooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0101 (Indigenous Woman at Protest)

Manny Benda .........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 2
0105 (Young Maurice); 0106 (Young Maurice)
Jean Bernard....... ..ot 1

0106 (SQ Officer)
Tamara Brown ..........coouiiiiiiiiiiii i, 6

0101 (Myrna Landers); 0102 (Myrna Landers); 0103
(Myrna Landers); 0104 (Myrna Landers); 0107
(Myrna Landers); 0108 (Myrna Landers)
Elysia Bryan-Barnes...................coooiiiiiiinan., 1
0105 (Reporter)

Michael Douglas Cake..............coooiiiiiiiiian... 1
0102 (Smoking Janitor)
[@70) (7o) s W@ F= 1 § 1 4

0105 (Kevin Kis); 0106 (Kevin Kis); 0107 (Kevin
Kis); 0108 (Kevin Kis)
19 Lo T3 @] o e (< o 10RO 4
0101 (Hayden Smith); 0102 (Hayden Smith); 0103
(Hayden Smith); 0104 (Hayden Smith)

Hazgary Colin..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaenn 1
0107 (SQ Officer Search Team #2)

Liam Condo ....oooviiiiii i e 2
0103 (Drunk Kid #3); 0104 (Drunk Kid #3)

Konwaherawi CroSS........vveieininenenenenenenenenenens 1

0107 (Young Indigenous Girl)

D

Bobby Daniels.........c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1

0105 (Mr. Maynard)

Dreyden David ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1

0104 (Mohawk Boy #1)

Tehahsitaieronni Deer...............cccoiiiiiiiiinenn... 1

0104 (Matthew / Niyaaniipuu)

Isabel Deroy-Olson..........cooviiiiiiiniiiiiinennen... 6

0101 (Kara Two-Rivers); 0102 (Kara Two-Rivers);
0103 (Kara Two-Rivers); 0104 (Kara Two-Rivers);
0107 (Kara Two-Rivers); 0108 (Kara Two-Rivers)

Chantal Desjardins ..............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn, 1

0108 (Newscaster)

Myléne Dinh-Robic.................oooooiiini 2

0105 (Sandra Morrow); 0106 (Sandra Morrow)

Brett Donahue ..........cooiiiiiiiiiiii i 2

0105 (Thomas Morrow); 0106 (Thomas Morrow)

Simone Dumoulin.............cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiini.. 2

0103 (Sophie’s Piano Double); 0104 (Sophie’s Pi-
ano Double)

Rosemary Dunsmore. ..............oooiiiiiiiiiiinen.. 2

0105 (Irene Morrow); 0106 (Irene Morrow)

Jérémie Earp..............oooiinn 1

0101 (SQ@ Police Officer)

Elisabeth Etienne ...............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiienan... 1

0108 (SQ Officer #1)

Kathleen Fee ..ot 2

0101 (Kaye Thompson); 0102 (Kaye Thompson)

Katsitsionni FOX.........cooiiiiiiiiiii i 1

0104 (Mohawk Singer #1)

Theresa FOX ...oouiiiiii et 1

0104 (Mohawk Singer #2)

19511 221 0] ) 1S ol 2

0101 (Emilie Longpré); 0102 (Emilie Longpré)

G

Iehwatsirahni:Ra’ts Gilbert.........................oo... 1

0105 (Mathilde Lacost)

Simone-Elise Girard ..., 2

0101 (CC de Poitiers); 0102 (CC de Poitiers)

Emmet Graham ........coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieannnns 2

0103 (Drunk Kid #4); 0104 (Drunk Kid #4)

Frédéric-Antoine Guimond .............covviiiiinan.n. 6

0101 (Olivier Brulé); 0102 (Olivier Brulé); 0103 (Olivier
Brulé); 0104 (Olivier Brulé); 0107 (Olivier Brulé);
0108 (Olivier Brulé)

Ali Hand ... .o e 4
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0101 (Sophie); 0102 (Sophie); 0103 (Sophie); 0104

(Sophie)
AcaciaHanvelt ........ ...ttt 2
0105 (Bean); 0106 (Bean)
Gryffin Hanvelt..............oooiiiii i, 6

0102 (Young Gamache); 0103 (Young Gamache);
0104 (Young Gamache); 0105 (Young Gamache);
0107 (Young Gamache); 0108 (Young Gamache)

Viggo Hanvelt..... ...t 2

0105 (Young Peter Morrow); 0106 (Young Peter Mor-
TowW)

Michael Hearn..........c..ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it iineaenns 1
0107 (Arthur Ellis)

Arthur Holden...........ooiiiii i 1
0104 (The Caretaker)

Stuart Hughes.............ooi i 2

0105 (Charles Morrow); 0106 (Charles Morrow)

Marcel Jeannin........oouvuineiiiiientiiin i 4
0101 (Superintendent Francoeur); 0103 (Superin-
tendent Francoeur); 0106 (Superintendent Fran-
coeur); 0108 (Superintendent Francoeur)
Shareena Jebb ..... ..ottt 1
0105 (Lili Lacoste)

Madelyn Keys ......ooiiuiiiiiiii it 2
0103 (Drunk Kid #2); 0104 (Drunk Kid #2)
Kathryn Kirkpatrick ... 1

0106 (Gas Station Owner)

Max Laferriere. ........ooviiriii it ie e 4
0101 (Mike Blake); 0102 (Mike Blake); 0107 (Mike
Blake); 0108 (Mike Blake)
Anna Lambe. .. ...t e 6
0101 (Blue Two-Rivers); 0102 (Blue Two-Rivers);
0104 (Blue Two-Rivers); 0106 (Blue Two-Rivers);
0107 (Blue Two-Rivers); 0108 (Blue Two-Rivers)
Marie-France Lambert................cooviiiiiiinnanan.. 7
0101 (Reine-Marie); 0102 (Reine-Marie); 0103 (Reine-
Marie); 0105 (Reine-Marie); 0106 (Reine-Marie);
0107 (Reine-Marie); 0108 (Reine-Marie)

Laurence Leboeuf.............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiininan., 2
0105 (Julia Morrow); 0106 (Julia Morrow)
Vincent Leclerc..........oooiviiiiiiiiiiiii e 2
0105 (Maurice Tradeau); 0106 (Maurice Tradeau)
Jessica Lee ....o.iiiiii i 2
0103 (Drunk Kid #1); 0104 (Drunk Kid #1)
Harriette Legault..................oooooiiin, 2
0105 (Young Julia Morrow); 0106 (Young Julia Mor-
TOoW)
Jack Molloy Legault..................oooiiiiiiiiian, 2
0105 (Young Thomas Morrow); 0106 (Young Thomas
Morrow)
Crystle Lightning...............oooooiiiiinininn 5

0101 (Missy Two-Rivers); 0102 (Missy Two-Rivers);
0103 (Missy Two-Rivers); 0106 (Missy Two-
Rivers); 0107 (Missy Two-Rivers)
Georgina Lightning. ... 6
0101 (Arisawe Two-Rivers); 0102 (Arisawe Two-Rivers);
0103 (Arisawe Two-Rivers); 0104 (Arisawe Two-
Rivers); 0107 (Arisawe Two-Rivers); 0108 (Ari-
sawe Two-Rivers)
Juliette Louie. ...t 1
0107 (SQ Officer Search Team #1)
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Yanna McIntosh...........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 2
0105 (Estelle); 0108 (Estelle)

Robert Moloney...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiian, 2
0101 (Richard Lyon); 0102 (Richard Lyon)

Robert Montcalm..........cooviiiiiiiiiiniiiiiiin . 1
0108 (Chowski)

Bryan Morneau ............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 1
0104 (SQ Officer)

Daniel MUrphy .......coooiiiiiiiiii i 3
0101 (Marc Fortier); 0102 (Marc Fortier); 0103 (Marc

Fortier)

Iannicko N'Doua-Légaré ...............coooviiiiinen... 2
0101 (Saul Petrov); 0102 (Saul Petrov)
Elizabeth Neale.............c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 2

0105 (Mariana Morrow); 0106 (Mariana Morrow)

Joshua OdjicK......c.oooiiiiiiii e 3
0104 (Tommy Kis); 0106 (Tommy Kis); 0108 (Tommy
Kis)
Lucy Van Oldenbarneveld .......................ocooeae 1

0101 (Reporter)

Nicolas Paquin ........cooieiiiiiiiii i 1
0108 (Gamache’s Father)
Simon Pelletier...........oooiiiiiiiii it 1

0107 (SQ Scene Guard)

45 (G ) 1
0107 (Dante)

LeisaReid .....ooviiiiii e 1
0107 (Female SIJ Agent)
Alexandre Ricard..........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiennns 2

0105 (Elliot); 0106 (Elliot)

Frank Schorpion............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinneen... 6
0101 (Pierre Arnot); 0102 (Pierre Arnot); 0103 (Pierre
Arnot); 0105 (Pierre Arnot); 0107 (Pierre Arnot);
0108 (Pierre Arnot)

Berkley Silverman...............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiienn 1
0102 (Collette Longpre)
Rylie Abakan Simon ...............c.oooiiiiiiiiiiiin.. 6

0101 (Pearl); 0102 (Pearl); 0103 (Pearl); 0104 (Pearl);
0107 (Pearl); 0108 (Pear])
Pierre SImMpson ... 6
0101 (Gabri Dubeau); 0102 (Gabri Dubeau); 0103
(Gabri Dubeau); 0104 (Gabri Dubeau); 0107
(Gabri Dubeau); 0108 (Gabri Dubeau)
Patricia Summersett............. ... i 4
0101 (Angela Blake); 0102 (Angela Blake); 0107
(Angela Blake); 0108 (Angela Blake)
Violet Sutherland ................ ..., 1
0104 (Young Bea)
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Rawennawanen Keese Olivier Swamp .................. 1
0104 (Mohawk Boy #2)

Katherine Turnbull ........... ..., 1
0106 (SQ Officer at Cell)

Thierry Yatma-Beye..........c..coiiiiiiiiiiiiinn ... 1
0103 (Piano Student)
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